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Motions ' 4

(WHEREUPON, the proceedings begin on the 7th day of:‘
January, 2013 at approximately'2539 p.m.)

THE CLERK: .Your Honor, this is case nuﬁber
2011-GS—-23-9368, Kevin Keith -- Lee Keith,
indictment for Burglary F;rst degiee.~ PleadiﬁgAto
the same -- I'm sorry -- to Burgiary Firstvdegrée.
It is a true bill. 2012-GS-23-2029, inqictmeﬁt for
Financiél Transaction Card Theft. Pleadingvto‘thej
same. It is a true bill. 2012-GS-23-2034,
Indictment for Burglary First Degree pleading_to :
the same. ft is a true bill. '2012—GS—23?2038,
indictment for Burglary First Degree. It is a trué
bill. 2012-GS-23-24 -- I'm sorry -— 2040, | ,
Indictment for Strong Armed Rokbery. Pieéding to
Common law Robbery. It is a true bill. -

Would you raise your right hand please?
(WHEREUPON, the defendant is first duly sworn.)

THE COURT: Mr. Keith, you are here today to
plead to Burglary First degree, that carriés.l5 |
years up to life. Financial Transaction Card
Theft, that carries up to five years. 1Is that
right?

MR. MOYER: That’s correct.

THE COURT: Ancother Burglary First degree-
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that carries 15 to life and a third Burglary first
degree that carries the same and Common Law robbery

which carries up to 15 years. Is that your

understanding?
MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.
THE COURT: Have you discussed with your

attorney that the burglary first degrees are
violent and most serious. Do you understand that?

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am. )

THE COURT: In other words, if yoﬁ receive
active jail time on these Charges; uh, your parole
eligibility, if any, will be calculated.diffé;ently
or the time you actually spend in jail will.bé -
calculated differently than if it were a non-
violent offense. You know that?

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Furthermo:e; being a most
serious offense means that if you were convictgd Qf'
one other most seriocus offense, tﬁe State, onﬁthat.
one, can seek life without the possibility of -
parole against you. You know that as well?

MR. KEITH? Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Have you discussed thése charges
fully with your attorney? -

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.
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THE COURT: Are you happy with what YOur
attorney’s done for you?

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Do you have any complaint to
make against law enforcement, the Solicitor’s.

office or your lawyer as a result of these charges

whatsoever?
MR. KEITH: N¢, ma'’am. A
THE COURT: Has anybody forced you to plead -
guilty? | |
MR. KEITH: ﬁo, ma’am.
THE COURT: Has anybody promised you

anything to get you to plead guilfy?
MR. KEITH: No, ma’am.
THE COURT: Are you under the influence of .

drugs or alcohol?

MR. KEITH: No, ma’am.

THE COURT: How old are you?

MR. KEITH: I'm 41.

THE COURT: How far did YOu gé.in school?
MR. KEITH: - I finished. -
THE COURT: Ckéy. Uh, when you plead

guilty, you give up certain constitutional rights.
One is your right to remain silent about these

charges. Do you know that?
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MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: You also give up'your right'to,a
jury trial. At that trial, your attorney could
call witnesses for you, cross-examine Qitnesses h
against you. You would not be compelled to téstifyll
against yourself. And the State would have tbr
prove your guilt beyond a reasonable doub;, When .
you plead guilty, you give up your right to a-jury' :
trial. You know that?: | | |

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma’am.

THE COURT: Okay. How do yoﬁ plead:on each
of these charges? Guilty or not guilty?

MR. KEITH: Yes, ma'am. Guilty. '

THE COURT: All right. You have 10 days-
from today's date to appeal this plea if you éé'
choose but you must do so in writing to thiS'Couft; 

Yes, sir.

MR. MOYER: Thank you, Your Honor. May'iﬁ
please the éourt. The first case I will mentibn'ié
Indictment number 2012-2038. That’s the.case that
was on the trial docket for tomorrow. It happeﬁed_
on January the 17th-of 2012. The victim wés'a
person this defendant knew. He used to do some . odd
jobs around his house and some other work.

On January the 17th, while the victim was away
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at work, the defendant kicked in the back door §f_.
the home and he stole a television and.a bracelet.
His fingerprints were found inside the home. He ——:
excuse me. He also confessed to that incident as
well. The TV was recovered. |

Another -- indictment number 2011—9368) tﬁat
burglary tock place.én September the 17th of éOll.,
The defendant broke into the victim’'s residénce on
South Washington Street while the victim wasﬁ’p
present. A witness saw the deﬁendant in the
residence and called the police. Officers caught
the defendant inside the building and had |
collectible coins owned by the victim in his
pocket. »

On December the 10th of 2012, the defendant'
and a co-defendant broke into a residence -on |
(inaudible) Road in Greenville. This residengeIWas
owned by the co-defendant’s parents. They stole a
TV, leaf blower and chainsaw.

The financial transaction éard theft case’

happened on December the 2nd of 201l1. The.

-defendant stole the victim’s ATM card at her

residence on Blake Street in Greenville. The
defendant was in the home because the co-defendant

was the victim’s roommate. The defendant used thé
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card to make several withdrawals and purchases.
The final incident happened on January the

17th of 2011. The deféndant and co-defendant went

to the victim’s residence on Duke Street in |

Greenville. Knocked on the door. The victim was

~mentally handicapped. He knew the defendants but

did not want to talk to tﬁem. He went in his 
bedroom and got in his bed. The.defendaht kicked
in fhe back door. Went to the victim’s bedroom and
took the victim’s wallet from his back pocket;

THE COURT: All right. And dées_he haveAa
prior record?

MR. MOYER:  He does, Your Honor. 1990,
Forgery and Prostitution; 1991, Distribution of
Cocaine; 1992, Shopiifting, two counts of Grand  7
Larceny, Common Law Robbery; 1994, Péssession of
Contraband, Simple Possession of Marijuana; 1994,
Breach of Peace, Receiving Stolen Gooas, Failufe-to'
Stop, two counts of Burglary second degree, two .
counts of Petty Larceny; 2004, parole revocatiqn;x
2006, two counts of Resisting Arrest with Asséuit,
Public Disorderly Conduct; 2009, Possession of
Hypodermic Needles, False Information; 2010, uh,
Stealing Dogs and.Pétty Larceny; 2011; Malicioﬁsjﬂ

Injury to Personal Property, Petty Larceny and:
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Hindering an Officer.

THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir.

MR. CULBERTSON: Your Honor, I’m not sure
exactly what’s going to sway you frbm your deCiSion
about giving this man as much time as thé‘Solici#or

is asking for.

THE COURT: * Are you seeking a particulaf -~

MR. CULBERTSON: No, no.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CULBERTSON: Tt's a straight up plea. |

THE CCURT: I assumed it was a straighé up'
plea. | ,.

MR. CULBERTSON: It is, Your Honor. What I

Qas referring to is that Mr. Moyer and Ivhayeibeen
around and around about potential sentencgs and~ﬁow
we were going to structure this, what we'could~do'
and whatnot. Uh, Kevin hés always maihtéinéd,‘to
me anyway, that he has a very serious drug
addiction problem.

THE COURT: ‘Yeah.

MR. CULBERTSON: I never believed anything
qifferent than that. I believe he has it. He
knows he has it. Mr. Moyver and I, the Solicitqr..
and I, talked about potential drug court situatibn,'

He is anxious to get some help. He realizes that-
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it’'s just as easy to get drugs in jail as it is out
on the street. He doesn’t necessarily see his
incarceration in and of itself helping him -
alleviate any of his drug addiction issues. brug
court was not a possibly due to these charges and
the nature of his previous record. He’s desperate
to ﬁry to get some help.

He admits to whaﬁ he’s done here. He gave a-
statement to the police very soon after it aii
happened. He named co-defendants thaﬁ were
involved with him. TIt’s our understanding thaf the
co—defendant§ and the victims, of e&ewitneséeé_were
prepared to come in here tomorrow and testify. He
had some questions of the co-defendant. That's no£>-
the issue.

He knows what he did was wrong. BRe admits
what he did was wrong. We’re asking the court to
be as gracious and lenient as possible towards him
while at the same time trying to structure
something that would be of benefit_to>him with ﬁis,'
drug addiction issues. |

Anything else you need to tell her?

MR. KEITH:. I'm just sorry for what I d}d.'

I got strung out there on crack for 26 years.

THE COURT: All right.
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MR. KEITH: I just ask you to please be as
lenient as possible. |

MR. MOYER: Judge, my only response_is the
defendant did ask about drug court. It waé never a
serious consideration because of these'chargeg and
his record. While he did want it, it waé:nevér
something we could offer. He did confess to one Gf
these incidents, .which is the one that Qas on:the.
trial docket for tomorrow. He nahed.the co-

defendant in that case.

THE COURT: How long has he served in jail?
MR. MOYER: 352 days.
THE COURT: Mr. Keith, we are in a situation:

now. Just to explain my sentence to you, I’m”gbing'
to give you some opportunity to at some point get
out and have something of a produptivé life ahead_
of you. But we’re in a situation now with your
record combined with the serious nature of these
charges, you've kind of put us all in a box..l
There’s not a lot else we can.do.

I"1l]l run all these concurrent. The sentence" 
of the Court is 18 years on the burglaries. I’11
give you credit for 353 days and then 15 concurrént_
on the common law robbery and five on the financial

transaction card theft. Best of luck to you.
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MR. MOYER: Thank YOu.
MR, CULBERTSON: Thank you.
(WHEREUPON, the proceedings. conclude at

approximately 2:50 p.m.)
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STATE OF SCUTH CAROLINA )

)
COUNTY CF GREENVILLE )

I, the undersigned, Teresa B. Johnson, Official Court -

Reporter for the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit of the State-of

South Carélina, do hereby éertify that the foregoing is a

true, accurate and complete Transcript of Record of allAthé'

proceedings had and evidence introduced in the trial of the

captioned case, relative to appeal, in the Court of General L

Sessions for Greenville, South Carolina, on this 24th day of

May, 2013.

I do further certify that I am neither of kin,'coﬁnse; 1

nor interest to any party hereto.

*‘&?%%%\S&Lﬁv'?‘ﬁ\;/)-
Teresa B. hnson |

Circuit Court Reporter'
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the form) setting forth information which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and: "
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Check whether a finding of guilty was made: S
(@ after a plea of guilty o ]

“(b)  afterapleaof not guilty

(c) - aﬁef a plea of nolo contendere

Did you appeal from the judgment of convncnon or the’ xmposmon of sentence'?
o _- : , . )

If you answered yes" to (7), hst

(@)~ the name of each Court to which you appealed

Y

(b) - the rcsult in each such Court to whxch you appealed: )

i ﬁf A

(c) - the date of each such resul‘t:‘
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' disposition: :
i s *

i .
iii.

iv.

(c)  thedisposition thereof:.

i Y s

(d)- the date of each such disposition:.
i IR '

7

(e)  if known, citations of any written opinions or orders én';eféd pursuant to éach such

Has’any grour_ld-set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or}_any 'other COUI"(, L
Sian: or Federal, in any petition, motion or appliéa‘tion »_vﬁich you have filed? » E

Y L

If you answered “yes” to (14) identify:

(2) = which grounds have been presented:

Lo Mp

(b) . the proceedings in which each grdﬁ‘nd@as raised';:

Revised 3/2003.
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If you answered “yes” to one or more parts of (17), list:

If any ground set forth in (] 0) has not prevrously been presented to any Court, State or
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Were you represented by,an attorney at any time during the course of: - -

(a)  your arraignment and plea? _{ & J

(b)  your trial, if any? . Ve s

(c) your ser\tencmg'7 e T

(d)  your appeal lf any, from the Judgment of convrctlon or the 1mposmon of
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applications wiih respect to this conviction, which you filed? L
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- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) e
S o ) VERIFICATION .
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upon my oath, depose and say that [ have subscribed to the foregoing apphcatlon that T kniow the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, sétting asnde or -
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this apphcatlon and that the matters and

_“allegations therein set forth- arc true. .

-SWORN 0, nd sub_Z.bed before me this - L/’i
day of PEI

(Fod o Lpdin (Ls;
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- My Cémmission‘ Expires: M///,gdﬁ/ _
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APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
- OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT '
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

Ke it LEE K CITH ’“"" 7 & 7 7 & hereby apply for leave to ..
proceed in this action wnthout prepayment of fees.or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application 1 declare under penalty of perjury that the followmg facts are true: -

(l) [ am the appllcant in this action and I bel:eve l am- entltled to redress.

@) ~ Because of my poverty lam unable to pay the costs of said proceedmg or gwe

security thereof.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
C.A. No. 2013-CP-23-2303

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

Kevin Lee Keith,
S.C.D.C. No. 174394,

RETURN
V.

State of South Carolina,

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
Applicant, )
)

)

)

)

)
Respondent. )
)

In response to the post-conviction relief application filed April 24, 2013, the Respondent.

would show this Court:
L

The Applicant is incarcerated with the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to the Greenville County Clerk of Court’s orde.rs of commitment. The Applicant was
indicted at the November 2012 tenﬁ of the Gfeenville County Grand Jury for three counts of
first-degree burglary (2011-GS-23-9368 and 2012-GS-23-2034, -2038), financial transaction
card (FTC) theft (2012-GS-23-2029), and strong arm robbery (2012-GS-23-2040). Symmes
Culbertson, Esquire represented the Applicant.

On January 7, 2013, the Applicant pled guilty.' ‘The Honorable Letitia H. Verdin
- sentenced the Applicant to concurrent terms of eighteen years for each count of first-degree

burglary, ﬁﬂéen (15) years for strong arm robbery, and five years for FTC theft. The Applicant

! The State nol prossed indictments for FTC fraud (2012-GS-23-2030, -2031, -5058), criminal conspiracy
{2012-GS-23-2032, -2037), petit larceny (2012-GS-23-2033), first-degree burglary (2012-GS-23-2035, -
2039), petit larceny, third offense or greater (2012-GS-23-5056), FTC theft (2012-GS-23-5057).
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did not appeal.
Attached herewith and incorporated heréin by reference are the records of the Greenville
County Clerk of Court regarding the subject convictions, the Applicant’s records from the South

Carolina Department of Corrections, and the plea transcript.

II.
In his application for post-conviction relief the Applicant alleges he is being held in

custody unlawfully for the following reason:

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
a. Counsel did not meet with Applicant enough.
b. Counsel did not afford Applicant the chance to present a complete.
defense.
c. Counsel did not keep Applicant reasonably informed.
11

The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s allegations that his attofney was ineffective are
without merit. The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s attorney rendered effective assistance
well within the standard of “reasonableness within professional norms™ for a defense attorney.

Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for relief, the Applicant
must prove that “counsel’s conduct sovundermined the proper functioning of the adversarial
process that the trial cannot be relied on as ha;/ing produced a just result.” Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686, 104 ‘S. Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984); Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441,
442, 334 S.E.2d 813, 814 (1985).

The proper measure of performance is whether the attorney érovided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume counsel

“rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
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pr(;fessional Judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066. The Applicant must
overcome this presumption in order to receive relief. See Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 118, 386
S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989).

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel.
First, the applicant must prove counsel’s performance was deficient. Under this prong, attorney
performance is measured by its “rea;sonableness under prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.
State, 300»S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at
2065). Second, counsel’s deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that
“there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. ‘;A
reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of

trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997) (citing Strickland v.

Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984)).

| The Respondent submits the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland
v. Washington test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises
questions of fact that cannot be conclusively refuted by the record. The Respondent requests an
evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 265, 305

S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (citing Norman v. State, 276 S.C. 278, 277 S.E.2d 707 (1981)).

Iv.

The Respondent denies each allegation not expressly admitted, qualified or explained.
V.

WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the Respondent requests that a hearing be held
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and counsel appointed to represeht the Applicant.

Q. \8

, 2013

By:

Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chief Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

P.O. Box 11549
Columbia, S.C. 29211

Atforneys for Respbndent 0




29

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) '
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
; 2013-CP-23-2303
KEVIN LEE KEITH, 174394 ;
| Applicant, ;
Vs ; AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ;
Respbndent. ;
)

1. T'am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.

2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this is a
proper circumstance of service by mail.

I have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the following person
by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

(93]

Kevin Lee Keith, 174394
Lieber Correctional Institution
Post Office Box 205

Ridgeville SC 29472

DATED this 18th day of October, 2013.

Judy A.@. Carey. Legal Kssistant
For Respondent ‘
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE 2013-CP-23-2303

KEVIN LEE KEITH,
PLAINTIFF,
vs. TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
DEFENDANT.

N et et et el el e e N e e e e e

~—

June 17, 2014
Greenville, South Carolina

BEFORE:

THE HONORABLE ROBIN B. STILWELL, JUDGE.

APPEARANCES:

CAROLINE M. HORLBECK, ESQ.
Attorney for the Plaintiff

KAREN C. RATIGAN, ESQ.
Attorney for the Defendant

PENNY M. JOHNSON .
Family Court Reporter
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2
I NDEX
(PW) - Denotes Plaintiff's Witness
(DW) - Denotes Defense Witness
- Page No.
(PW) KEVIN LEE KEITH:
Direct Examination by Ms. Horlbeck.......... 4
Cross-Examination by Ms. Ratigan............ 11
(DW) SYMMES CULBERTSON: B
Direct Examination by Ms. Ratigan........... 14
Cross-Examination by Ms. Horlbeck........... 21
v EXHIBITS
NO. DESCRIPTION ID. EVD.
(Plaintiff's Exhibits)
1 Arrest Warrants....:................ 23 25
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 3

PROCEEDTINGS

MS. RATIGAN: This is the case of Kevin Keith vs. State
of South Carolina. Docket number is 2013-CP-23-2303. Mr.
Keith was indicted for three counts of first degree burglary
and one count each of financial transaction card theft and
strong armed robbery. He was represented by Mr. Symmes
Culbertson. On January 7th, 2013, he pled guilty before
Judge Verdin. He received concurrent sentences of 18 years
for each count of first degree burglary, 15'years for strong
armed and five years for financial transaction card theft.

I would also note that the return on the footnote that list
numerous indictments that were nol prossed also as a result
of that plea; Mr. Keith did not file an appeal and the
State's ready to proceed.

THE COURT: Ms. Horlbeck.

MS. HORLBECK: Judge, we would call Mr. Keith to the
stand.

THE COURT: Mr. Keith, if you would come on up, please,
sir. Place your left hand on the Bible and raise your right
hand.

Thereupon;

KEVIN KEITH,

After having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Thank you. Please state your full name for

the record.
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 4

THE WITNESS: Kevin Lee Keith.
THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. HORLBECK:

Q Mr. Keith, did you plead guilty to three burg}ary
first charges, a financial transaction card theft charge
and a strong armed robbery?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Who represented you at that guilty plea?

A Mr. Symmes Culbertson.

0 As a result of his representation, did you file this
petition for post-conviction relief today?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q All right. Was your case scheduled for trial on
January the 8th, 20132

A Yes, ma'am.

b And did Mr. Culbertson talk to you about the fact
that your case was scheduled for trial?

A He advised me that it was going to be going to trial
the eighth. He came to see me the day before the actual
hearing because I received a letter stating I would be
going to trial. So he came up and we discussed the
situatién about a plea. I asked him was the plea still on
the table, the 15-year plea, and he said yes. That's the

only reason why I went ahead and went along with the plea
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 5

at the time because, you know, I felt I could have
probably got more time. I went ahead and told him I
wanted to go ahead with it if I was going to receive the
plea for 15 years.

Q Okay. Did you meet with Mr. Culbertson on January
the 7th, the day before the trial?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] Did you meet with Mr. Culbertson any other days

before your trial?

A No, ma'am.
Q When did you find out your case was scheduled for
trial?

A The day before.

Q And at that conference that you had with Mr.
Culbertson on the 7th, did you and he discuss the
possibility of any plea offers from the State?

A The 15, that's it.

Q So you did discuss that, is that correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And did Mr. Culbertson tell you that the State would
offer you a 15-year recommendation if you pled guilty?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] Did Mr. Culbertson explain to you why the State was
making a recommendation since your case was on the trial

docket?
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 6

A I believe it was the serious nature of the crime. I

" mean, that's the only thing I can think of.

Q What, specifically, did Mr. Culbertson tell you about
the 15-year offer?

a If T didn't plead guilty, we was going to go to
trial. Just take the plea or nothing.

0 What was your understanding of exactly what the State

was going to say as to sentence if you pled guilty?

A That I receive the 15 years.

Q Did Mr. Culbertson tell you that was the State's
recommendation?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Mr. Culbertson didn't make any promises about this

being a 15-year offer, did he?
A No, ma'am.

Q But he did say that the State would recommend 15

years?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And your decision to plead guilty, what was that

decision based on?

A I mean, the way it seemed was I couldn't get no
lesser time. It was either 15 or it was going to be more.
So I told him, I mean, what about drug court. I mean,
I've had a bad drug problem, that's my whole problem. And

I would like to have tried, at least, to got drug court.




36

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 7

But I guess it was the only option, that's why I went
ahead and told him I would be willing to go ahead and take
the 15 years.

0 Did Mr. Culbertson discuss with you that the Court

didn't have to go alongAWith'that iS-year:recommendation?

A No.

Q In your mind, was this 15 years a done deal?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q If you had known that this 15 years was not a done

deal, and if you had known there was no recommendation for

15 years, would you still have pled guilty?

A I would have took a trial.

Q  But you did plead guilty, correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Was that because of the advice that your attorney

gave to you about the 15-year offer?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q You had mentioned drug court. Now, do you recall the
State, actually, advising the Court that your attorney had
requésted that you be screened for drhg court?

A No.

Q You don't recall that?

A I mean, I remember that he brought it up at the end
of it after I brought it up in the court about the drug

court situation, but it never was ahead of time. I mean,
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 8

I wrote to the judge myself and the lady over it and I
never heard anything back.

Q And did you file a motion to have Mr. Culbertson
relieved as your attorney?

A Yes, ma'am, on 12/27 of '12, I sent a copy to ask him
to be removed as my appointed attorney to him and Mr. Mark
Moyer and the public defender's office.

Q Was a hearing ever scheduled to address your motion

to have Mr. Culbertson relieved as your attorney?

A No, ma'am.

Q Do you know why a hearing was not scheduled?

A No, ma'am.

0 Did you discuss with Judge Verdin that you didn't

really want Mr. Culbertson to be your attorney?

A Not at the time.

Q Why was that?

A Because we went ahead and went forward with the
process at the time. I mean, it was really like I was
pushed'into it because it was really if I didn't do it
then, then it was going to be a trial scheduled.

Q And you glso wanted to present an issue that you
claimed that you were never indicted for burglary first?
A No, ma'am, on the one that I was recharged for ;— I
have it in my paperwork over there. It was in 2011, I

think, I was charged with burglary second degree,
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 9

nonviolent. And when I went to court on these other
charges, it was first degree. I never received a warrant
or anything stating it was first degree. I mean, I made
bond on that charge and it was a second degree burglary.
Q Did you and Mr. Culbertson discuss.that the grand
jury had indicted that burglary second warrant as a
burglary first?

A No, ma'am.

Q When did you first learn that that burglary second
had evolved into a burglary first?

A Not until I received a copy of my sentencing sheet.
Q When did you receive a copy of your sentencing sheet,
after the plea or before?

A It was after the pleé.

Q Did you review your sentencing sheets with your
attorney before you signed them?

. I mean, I signed -- he said if we get the offer, his
initials would be on it.

Q I'm sorry, say that again.

A His initials would be on it. His initials was on the
sentencing sheet.

Q Whose initials?

A Mr. Culbertson.

Q Well, when you found out that burglary second was,

actually, a burglary first and you were pleading to it,
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(Kevin Keith) - Direct by Ms. Horlbeck 10

did you mention that to the judge?

A No, ma'am.

Q Why not?

A I have to go back. It was after I was sentenced when
I noticed the indictment had been enhanced.

o] Are you saying that you didn't realize that that
burglary second had -- that you were pleading to a
burglary first rather than a burglary second?

A Right.

Q And you didn't notice it on your sentencing sheets
before you signed them?

A No, ma'am.

Q And when Judge Verdin announced it in court, did you

realize it then?

A No, ma'am, because I didn't know all the warrant
numbers.
Q But you didn't realize you were pleading guilty to

the other two burglary first charges, correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And your position is that on that burglary second,
you don't believe that the indictment handed down by the
grand jury on that particular charge is valid?

A No, ma'am.

Q Is there any other reason you don't believe that

indictment is valid?
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(Kevin Keith) - Cross by Ms. Ratigan 11

A I mean, I asked for copies and never received copies
from the clerk of court.
Q What other grounds did you want to present against
Mr. Culbertson?
A That's about it.

MS. HORLBECK: Okay. Pleasé answer any questions
that Ms. Ratigan has for you.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. RATIGAN:

Q ‘When did Mr. Culbertson tell you about the 15-year
offer, do you remember?

A I don't really know the dates, ma'am, but he did.

Q And when he talked to you about this 15-year offer,
did you tell him at that time, I want to take the offer or
did you tell him you needed time to think about it?

A Think about it.

Q So when did you finally tell him okay, I think I want
to take that 15-year offer?

A Well, when it came to the day before the jury trial.
Q So on January 7th, 2013, that's when you told him I
want to go ahead and take that offer? .

A He told me it would be best if I did. I mean, at the
time when he come to visit me, he said it would probably
be best if I did take the 15 years instead of a jury

trial. I mean, it's like really -- it's not really
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(Kevin Keith) - Cross by Ms. Ratigan 12

trying, I mean, because if you're trying to help someone,
you would, at least, try to get the charges to a lesser
charge.

Q Now, I know you don't remember when he gave you the
offer, but how long do you think you had to think about

it? Was it a couple days, was it some weeks, do you

remember?

A I think the next time they come back, it was a month.
Q So you definitely had some time to think about it?

A Yeah.

Q And when you talked to Mr. Culbertson that day,
January 7th, the day you pled guilty, did he tell you that
day that you were going to get that 15-year offer?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Now, did he say you were absolutely going to get it,
or that he was going to ask for it, or that it was
recommendation, what did he tell you?

A It's a recommendation, he said he was more than sure
I'd get it.

Q Now, Mr. Culbertson told Judge Verdin that day that
you were pleading straight up without a recommendation, do
you remember him telling her that?

A No, ma'am.

Q And when you signed the sentencing sheets before you

pled guilty, did you notice that the box without
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(Kevin Keith) - Cross by Ms. Ratigan 13

recommendation was checked, did you notice that at the
time?

A No, ma'am.

Q And your testimony today is that if you had known you
weren't going to get that 15-year offer, you would have
rather gone to trial?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 But didn't you give a statement and name
codefendants? Wasn't there a lot of evidence against you?
A No, ma'am, they wanted me to testify against my
codefendants, which, actually, received nothing.

Q But did you give a statement to the officers, did you
give a confession?

A To one crime, yes, ma'am, to the burglary. I give
the ticket back, yes, ma'am.

0] And did any witnesses identify you in any of these
other charges?

A No.

o] So even though you'd given a statement in one of the
charges, you were still wanting to go to trial?

A Yes, ma'aﬁ.

Q Now, when Mr. Culbertson said there was no
recommendation and the State did not make any kind of
recommendation, why didn't you tell the judge, you know,

wait, I thought I was here today for a 15-year




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

43

(Kevin Keith) - Cross by Ms. Ratigan 14

recommendation?
A Because once I pled gquilty, it was too late. I mean,
she had done asked me about the charges and how did I
plead and I told her I pled guilty to the charges, so the
sentence was handed down after that.
0 Okay. But at no point prior to sentencing you
thought it was a good idea to ask when you were going to
talk about the 15-year recommendation?
A No, ma'am.

MS. RATIGAN: That's all I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Any further questions?

MS. HORLBECK: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Appreciate you being here, you may step
down.

Anything further from the applicant?

MS. HORLBECK: No, sir.

THE COURT: Anything from the State?

MS. RATIGAN: Yes, sir, we call Mr. Culbertson.
Thereupon;

SYMMES CULBERTSON,

after being duly sworn, testified as follows:
THE CLERK: Thank you. Please state your full name for
the record.
THE WITNESS: Symmes Culbertson.

THE CLERK: Thank you. You may be seated.
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(Symmes Culbertson) - Direct by Ms. Ratigan 15

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. RATIGAN:

o] Mr. Culbertson, do you recall representing Mr. Keith
on these charges?

A Yes, I do.

Q And were you appointed or were you retained?

A I was appointed.

o] And did Mr. Keith authorize you to engage in plea
negotiations with the State?

A Yes.

Q I'm going to cut right to chase. Mr. Keith states
that at one point there was an offer from the State for 15
years, is that correct?.

A That is correct. Actually, if I could back up just a
second. There were several offers extended to Mr. Keith
during the pendency of this case. I think it's also
important to point out that I was not the first attorney
through the public defender's office that represented Mr.
Keith. Mr. Vaster, I think, was initially appointed to
represented Mr. Keith. During théﬁ time, and also during
the time that I represented Mr. Keith, there were various
offers made from the solicitor's office as to the
resolution of these charges.

Q And do your notes reflect that -- we're going to put

the 15-year offer aside for a second. Do your notes
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(Symmes Culbertson) - Direct by Ms. Ratigan le

reflect that those prior offers had been conveyed to Mr.
Keith?

A Yes, they did.

Q And do your notes reflect that Mr. Keith rejected
those prior offers?

A Yes.

Q Now, this 15-year offer in question, when did the
State convey that offer?

A The first note that I have in the file right now that
shows the 15-year offer was from November 30th, 2012 --
actually, yes, I'm sorry, actually, the first was June the
18th, 2012, a plea offer from the solicitor's office that
indicates the solicitor's office had the desire for Mr.
Keith to enter a plea to a number of charges, that they
were going to dismiss some other charges and that they
would recommend a 15-year sentence. Again, that was on
06/18/2012.

I have another letter from the solicitor's office
from November 30th of 2012, specifically from Mark Moyer,
the assistant solicitor handling Mr. Keith's case, that
indicates -- and I'll read it, if you don't mind, it says,
Dear Symmes, Tracy Burkett from the public defender's
office told me yesterday that your above referenced client
will not accept my plea offer of 15-year recommendation

and wants a trial. If he has a change of mind and wishes
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{Symmes Culbertson) - Direct by Ms. Ratigan 17

to plead guilty, he must do so during the December 10th,
2012 term of court. This case is subject to being placed
on the trial docket at any time starting January 7th, 2013
term of court. That was passed along, obviously, to Mr.
Keith and the previous letter was also passed along to Mr.
Keith. He knew that there was a 15-year offer for a

while.

Q Do you recall that that 15-year offer had an

-expiration date?

A Well, based on the letter of November 30th, 2012, I
assumed the expiration date was when it might have got
placed on the trial docket. The trial docket in this
letter was indicated January the 7th, 2013, so I was
operating under the assumption that the expiration of that
offer would have been prior to being placed on the trial
docket.

Q Now, Mr. Keith has téstified that you met with him on
January 7th, 2013, that would have been a plea date. Do
you recall meeting with him that day, the day of the plea?
A Oh, I'm sure I did.

Q And is that the time when you would have told him the
case was on the trial docket or would he have been
notified of that prior to?

A I don't specifically recall when I told him his case

would have been placed on the trial docket. I know that I
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(Symmes Culbertson) - Direct by Ms. Ratigan 18

would have communicated that to him once I got that
information. I don't remember the specific date I may
have told him,

Q When Mr. Keith was brought up to the courthouse on
January 7th, do you recall was it to plead guilty or was
it for trial or do you have any recollection?

a I don't have a clear recollection, although based on
what I see in the file, based on my memory, I believe he
was brought up for a guilty plea.

Q Would you have told him on January 7th of 2013 that
that 15-year offer was still available?

A Yes.

Q You would have told him that 15-year offer was still
available in January?

A I believe I would have because that was the only
offer I knew that was out there.

0 But even though he had rejected it and it was placed
on the trial docket, you would have told him the day of
the plea that offer was still valid?

A I don't remember.

Q Do you recall telling Judge Verdin that the plea was
straight up?

A No, I don't remember that specifically.

Q So even though Mr. Keith had rejected the 15-year

offer and it was on the trial docket, you would have told
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(Symmes Culbertson) - Direct by Ms. Ratigan 19

him that day that he could still get that 15 years?

A No, I don't think I would have told him that. And I
apologize for being confusing. I'm trying to think back
to that conversation. Generally, it's not my practice to
tell a client that an offer is still available, especially

once it's been placed on the trial docket. The standard

- policy is once it's been placed on the trial docket, any

previous offers fall by the wayside.

Q Did you tell Mr. Keith that day you were sure he
would get 15 years?

A No. I never tell a client that I'm positive what
they're going to get. I tell them it's always up to the
judge what the sentence will be.

Q Would you have explained to Mr. Keith before he pled
guilty the sentence ranges of these various charges?

A I'm sure I did.

Q Did Mr. Keith at any point during the plea ask you to
stop the proceedings, withdraw the plea, not proceed
forward with this hearing, do you recall?

A Not that I recall.

o] The last issue is it appears from the documentation
that the 2011 burglary charge was originally arrested as a
burglary second, but indicted for a burglary first. Do
you recall any issue with that?

a Né, I don't. And I just point out that in 2011, I
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did not represent Mr. Keith, Mr. Vaster, the attorney that
had been appointed to represent Mr. Keith. I believe my
appointment in terms of representing Mr. Keith began in
February of 2012.

Q Would there be any reason to challenge an indictment
if the individual is arrested for burglary second and
indicted for burglary first, would there be any legal
basis to challenge that indictment?

A If a person was arrested for burglary second and

indicted for burglary first?

Q Yes.
A You're asking if there's legal argument --
Q Would there have been a legal objection to that you

could have made?
A Sure.

Q And that would have been?

A Efficiency of the indictment.
Q But even though the charge could have been directly
presented?

A Well, it could always be directly presented. I
assume you're asking me a hypothetical, if there's a
possibility to do that?

Q Yes.

A Yes, it's possible to do that.

MS. RATIGAN: I don't have anything further.
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THE COURT: Cross?

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. HORLBECK:

Q Mr. Culbertson, you testified that there was a letter
from the State dated November 30th, 20122

A Yes.

0 Aqd in that letter, the State reviewed that Ms.
Burkett had informed the State that Mr. Keith did not want

to plea, is that correct?

A I'll read it again if you need me to.
Q Sure, that's fine.
A What it says is that -- it's addressed to me. It

says, Dear Symmes, Tracy Burkett of the public defender's
office told me yesterday that_your above referenced client
will not accept my plea offer of the 15-year
recommendation and he wants a trial. If he has a change
of mind and wishes to plead guilty, he must do so during
the December 10th, 2012 term of court. This case is
subject to being placed on the trial docket at any time
starting with the January 7th, 2013 terms of courf. It
goes on to say my records indicate that you have been
provided all discovery. If this is not the case or if you
have any questions about, give me a call and we will
compare files to make sure you have everything. Also, let

me know if you would like to view any evidence or
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photographs, if applicable, prior to trial.

Q Did you review that with Mr. Keith?

A I believe I did.

Q Do your notes reflect when and by what means you
reviewed it with him?

A Well, as I look back through the file, I see that
there are several notes that I made in Mr. Keith's file.
It goes back to February the 8th, 2012, handwritten note
in here says, Met with defendant in jail. Defendant wants
drug/M&M. He, Mr. Keith, gave me a copy of his statement.
Then, again, February 22nd, 2012, met with defendant again
at the jail. On August 22nd, 2012, at the jail, signed a
plea sheet at that time and wanted to discuss the offer
with me further. He would like to have a recommendation
for drug court. Again, then, September 19th, 2012, I have
a note here that says, Mr. Keith signed the plea sheet and
wants the zero to 15 nonviolent sentence. That's the last
of my handwritten notes I have in Mr. Keith's file.

Q When Mr. Keith came to court on January 7th, you
don't recall specifically whether or not you told him that
that 15-year offer was still on the table?

A No, I don't recall if I specifically told him that or
not.

Q And the grounds for enhancing the charges to burglary

first, do you recall those?
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A No, I do not.

Q Okay.

A I don't recall specifically why they did that. I can
assume that they did that based on the length of Mr.

Keith's prior record.

Q Okay. His prior record, do you recall that it did

include two burglary charges form 19942

A Yes.

o) Did you investigate the dates that those two prior
burglaries happened?

A I don't believe I did.

Q Okay.

MS. HORLBECK: 1I'd like to mark this_as Petitioner's

(WHEREUPON, Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1 was marked for
identification.).
BY MS. HORLBECK:
Q Mr. Culbertson, I'm handing you a copy of
Petitioner's 1 and just ask that you take a look at that,

then I'11l ask you some questions.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q What are the two documents that comprise Petitioner's
1?2

A The first one is an arrest warrant charging burglary

second degree and grand larceny. It's dated October 1l4th,
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(Symmes Culbertson) - Cross by Ms. Horlbeck 24
1994.
o] Does it say who the warrant is for, is it for Mr.
Keith?
A It's for Kevin Lee Keith.
Q And what is the alleged date of that incident?
A It says October 14th, 1994.
Q And could you flip to page two of Petitioner's 17
A Yes, ma'am.
Q Is that a second warrant against Mr. Keith?
A It is a second warrant against Mr. Keith. This one

charges burglary first degree and petit larceny. It's
dated October the 2nd, 1994.

Q Is that the arrest date?

A That's correct.

Q And both of those arrest dates for both of those
warrant are from an October 1994 date?

A That's correct.

Q And are both of those documents in Petitioner's 1
have the clerk's stamp on it or are those stamped?

a Yes.

Q For two of these burglary first, would it surprise
you if the basis for two of the burglary first that Mr.
Keith pled to were his prior record?

A Are you asking me about these two that you just

handed me?
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Q Yes.

A Just to be clear, one of these is a warrant for
burglary second, the other one is for burglary first.

Q Right. But thosé two were the basis for two of these
burglary first that Mr. Keith pled to, the enhanced --

A Correct.

Q Did you make an -argument to Mr. Moyer that the
incident dates on those two priors were so close together
that they could have been considered one transaction

instead of two for purposes of enhancement?

A Are you asking if I made that argument?
0] Yes, in mitigation?
A I do not recall.

Q Okay. And to be fair, I do think that -- would it
surprise you if the third burglary first that Mr. Keith
pled to that the basis for that was a nighttime event?
A No, ma'am.

MS. HORLBECK: I would like to move those into
evidence, Judge.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. RATIGAN: No objection.

THE COURT: Without objection, the same is moved into
evidence.

(WHEREUPON, Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 1 was admitted

into evidence.)
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26

MS. HORLBECK: That's all I have. Thank you.

THE COURT: Any redirect?

MS. RATIGAN: No redirect and the State would rest
now.

THE COURT: You may step down, sir.

Anything further from the applicant?

MS. HORLBECK: Judge, just that since the basis for
one of the burglary first is the prior record and the
nighttime occurrence of the burglary, we would not ask
that this argument apply to that one. And I'm
specifically talking about -- it's the —
burglary that happened on 12/10/11.

THE COURT: You and your client both understand that
if I were to grant post-convictio% relief that he would go
back to the trial court and would face the possibility of
life without the possibility of parole? That's a big
gamble.

Mr. Keith, that's a big gamble. Matter of fact, if
the minimum is 15 and the maximum was life and he got 18,
that's not such a bad deal. But, of course, it's your
decision if you want to proceed on it. But I'll take it
all under advisement. 1I'll consider all the testimony and
all of the evidence that's been presented in context with
the transcript of record that's in the file. Good luck to

you.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

COUNTY OF ATKEN _ )

T, PENNY M. JOHNSON, Official Court Reporter for the
Second Judicial Circuit of the State of South Carolina, do
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complete Transcript of Record of the proceedings had and the

evidence introduced in the trial of the ‘captioned case,
relative to appeal, in Court of Common Pleas for Greenville
County, South Carolina, on the 17th day of June, 2014;

I do furthericertify that I am neither of kiR, counsel,

nor interest to any party hereto.

December 10, 2014

/{//w . @Z@WM

Penny M. Jo nson Court Reporter

My Commission Expires: 06/16/2018
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ARREST WARRANT

\W\Av o STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA m

_va._ County/ D Municipality of
T

94-171216

Sex: |R. Race: _W_  Height: IU|P.OI| Weight:
DL State: DL #:

‘oos: | ——— ~venoy omi#6C0230000 !

Prosecuting Agency: QCS0

Prosecuting Officer- ____Wa Al SMITH =
Offense: BURGLARY SECOND DEGREF AND =
é Offense Code:
Code/Ordinance Sec.

This wamrant is CERTIFIED FOR SERVICE in the
D oocaz\D Municipality of

The accused
is to be arrested and cﬁocm:ﬂ U&Qm me to be

dealt with according to law.

{LS.)

Signature of Judge

RETURN WARRANT TO:

‘Signdture of Issuing Jdtige

\4

" APPELLANT’S

B EXHIBIT

. Form Approved by

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) : \ _SC. Altorney General

XJ county/ L] Municipality of } AFFIDAVIT Ll ?\ oY
GREENVILLE ) . o : - _

Personally appeared before me the affiant INV. WESLEY A, SMITH, GCSO . : who

being duly sworn deposes and says that defendant

KEVIN LEE KEITH

did within this county and state on 10/14/94

violate the criminal laws of the

State of South Carolina (or ordinance QDOoc:?\DzE:_o_um_.Q of _ " )} -

in the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:
BURGLARY SECOND DEGREE AND

| further state that there is probable cause

fo bhelieve that the

GRAND . LARCENY

defendant named above did commit
ON THE INCIDENT DATE, THE

the crime set forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:
GARAGE AT AT wmmHumﬁmSn»e@mel IN GREENVILLE COUNTY AND BE-
LONGING TO RICKY DUNCAN WAS UNLAWFULLY INTERED BY FORCING THE DOOR. ~AFTER ENTRY

" WAS GAINED, PROPERTY BELONGING TO THE VICTIM AND VALUED AT OVER $2,000.00 WAS

STOLEN. THISODEFENDANT HAS GIVEN THE AFFIANT A SWORN STATEMENT IN WHICH HE

ADMITTED THAT HE AND A CO-DEFENDANT DID

czgzmqgm COMMIT THIS OFFENSE.

§§

Sworn 3 and subscribed Um*vo )
on W,mﬁ

m.m:m?..m of Affiant
Affiant's Address

RTH ST,

Affiant's Telephohe

3.
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) _ Clerk of Court C. e
(X1 county[_Imunicipaiity of ) ARRE mr WARRANT  Greenville: QE..Q.
—GREFNVILLE ) Dated (o [ 1-1E
TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR +z_o_§:4< OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
it appearing from the abowe affidavit that | there are reasonable  grounds to ° believe  that

on 10/14/94 defendant
did violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina (

D County/ D Municipality of

br ordinance of

) as set forth below:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: .

BURGLARY SECOND DEGREE AND
Now, therefore, you are empowered and directed to af
me forthwith 40 be dealt with according to law. A g
defendant } of its execution, or as soon thereafter

GRAND LARCENY

rest the said defendant and bring 3_3 or her before
opy of this Arrest ‘Warrant shall be delivered to the
as is practicable. .

— 4 MCGEE ST., RM 116B
GREENVILIE, SC_29601

) Judge’s Address
m_csm%

o——""TLS)) |
i wmm M ) ’
Judge Code: r% Issui

Judge's Telephoge

467-5312
Courtt || Magistrate L] Municipal L] Gircuit




ARREST WARRANT

mlommm#m 94-163654

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA -

@ County/ DZ::QB:Q of <
Greenville

THE STATE
agai nst

Kevin Iee Keith "Goat"

Address: g

Greenville, S.C
Phone: SSN:

Sex: _M_ Race._ W Im.or. 5'10_ _ wweight:
DL State;

DOB: ORI#:
Prosecuting Agency:

Prosecuting Officer. INV. DoOug Kelly 424
Offense: Burglary lst degree and Petit

Larceny Offense Code:
Code/Ordinance Sec.

This warrant is CERTIFIED FOR SERVICE in the
D County/ Dz_c:_oﬁm_i of
The accused

is to be arrested .and brought before me to be
dealt with according to law.

Signature of Judge

Date:

RETURN
A copy of this arrest warrant, was delivered to
defendant — Nncu.t Le& F\NH.\\\

on 1b-17- ¢.A A -4 x4 TR

Signature of Constable/Law Enforcement Officer
|

RETURN WARRANT TO:
Magistrate Ed. Taylor

v

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA “ mw%mﬁm,‘“moﬂa_

@Oo:::\\ DZ::.QUN:Q of ) AFFIDAVIT SCta 818
Greenville ) .

Personally appeared before me the affiant Inv. Doug Kelly who

being duly sworn deposes and says that defendant __Kevin Iee Keith A

did within this county and state on 10-2-94 violate the criminal laws of the

State of South Carolina (or ordinance of @Oociﬁg _Sc:_o_um___q ol Greenville === )

in the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Burglary lst degree w:m“vmﬁwﬁ Hmhnmsw

| E::m., state that there is

On the above date the defendant did enter

probable cause to belie
the crime set forth and that probabie cause is based on the f

that the defendant named above did commit

wing facts:
residence of Anita Hutchins, .

<a. swu.,o:wmu..:owmm:<wwwmoo§ﬁ~gumsmcwpw.esmammmbmmbﬁmbﬁmn&
throu an unlocked door during the night |time hours and with the victim

being at home. The defendant did steal,

of depriving the owner of, one unknown br
$250.00. The defendant was identified by
line up as the individual she observed at

e and carry away with the intent
of Microwave Oven valued at
victim from a photographic

r home on the night of the

incident. The property has not been recove

g fiaty

uow Universi. n< Ridge
Greenvil Iebgfified Copy

467-70020 D. U leas.
Cledk of Court-GrPdb-G-§om———r

Sworn to m:a ?_cmo:_om fore
\, \ W.“\» Signature of Affiant

S&’\‘“\J et fieee

m_m: ure of Issuing Judge Affiant's Telephone

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )

O..no:S:o "County, SC
@Oocsz\ DE::..QE__? of ) ‘ARRAN .-un~o.u W “ \N\I\Q\
Greenville )

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPRLITY OR ANY OOZm.;m_.m QF THIS COUNTY:

It appearing from the above affidavit that ere are reasonatie grounds o believe thal
on 10—-2-94 defendant _Kevinlliee Keith
did violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina (or inance of
@952\ chzaﬁm__z of Greenville
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE:

ARREST

} as set forth below:

Burglary l1lst and mmﬁ% Larceny

Now, therefore,

[}
you are empowered and directed to arrest ~ the said defendant and bring him or her before
to be dealt with according to law. A copydqof this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered to the
of its execution, or as soon thereafter as practicable.

) Judge's Address | 4 McGee Street
s) ) - R Greenville, S.C.
% }  Judge's Telephone 467-5312 .
ge Code: Issuing t H Magistrate D Municipal L Ciruit

ORIGINAL A
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
: ) C.A. No. 2013-CP-23-2303

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )
)

Kevin Lee Keith, ) = T IZ:.}

S.C.D.C. No. 174394, ) < &

) I

Applicant, ) oo e

) ORDER OF DISMISSAL — =5 ..

v. ) o

) =

State of South Carolina, ) LTS

) = Do

Respondent. ) —
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of an application for post-conviction relief
(PCR) filed April 24, 2013. The Respondent made its return on October 18, 2013. An
evidentiary bearing into the matter was convened on June 17, 2014, at the Greenville County
Courthouse. The Applicant was present at the hearing and represented by Caroline Horlbeck,
Esquire. Karen C. Ratigan, Esquire of the South Carolina Office of the Attorney General
represented the Respondent.

The Applicant testified on his own behalf at the PCR hearing. Also testifying was the
Applicant’s plea counsel, Symmes W. Culbertson, Sr., Esquire. The Court had before it the
guilty plea transcript, the Greenville County Cierk of Court records, the Applicant’s South
Carolina Department of Corrections records, the PCR application, the return and Applicant’s
Exhibit 1.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY
The Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to
orders of commitment from the Greenville County Clerk of Court. The Applicant was indicted

at the November 2012 term of the Greenville County Grand Jury for three counts of first-degree

ZE
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~ burglary (2011-GS-23-9368, 2012-GS-23-2034, and 2012-GS-23-2038), financial transaction
-card (FTC) theft (2012-GS-23-2029), and strong arm robbery (2012-GS-23-2040). He was
represented by Symmes W. Culbertson, Sr., Esquire.

On January 7, 2013, the Applicant pled guilty.'! The Honorable Letitia H. Verdin
sentenced the Applicant to concurrent terms of eighteen years for each count of first-degree
burglary, fifteen years for strong arm robbery, and five years for FTC theft. The Applicant did

not appeal.
ALLEGATIONS

In his application, the Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully for the

following reasons:
1. Ineffective assistance of counsel.
a. Counsel did not meet with Applicant enough. .
b. Counsel did not afford Applicant the chance-to. present a complete

defense.
c. Counsel did not keep Applicant reasonably informed.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and has heard the
testimony and arguments presented at the PCR hearing. This Court has further had the
' opportunity to observe each witness who testified at the hearing, and to closely pass upon their
credibility. This Court has weighed the testimony accordingly.
Set forth below are the relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law as required by

S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-80 (2003).

! The State nol prossed indictments for FTC fraud (2012-GS-23-2030, -2031, -5058), criminal conspiracy
(2012-GS-23-2032, -2037), petit larceny (2012-GS-23-2033), first-degree burglary (2012-GS-23-2035, -
2039), petit larceny, third offense or greater (2012-GS -23-5056), and FTC theft (2012-GS-23-5057).

27
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Ineffective Assistance of Counsel

The Applicant alleges he received ineffective assistance of counsel. In a PCR action,
“[t]he burden of proof is on the applicant to prove his allegations by a preponderance of the
evidence.” Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. 385, 389, 570 S.E.2d 172, 174 (2002).

For an applicant to be granted PCR as a result of ineffective assistance of counsel, he
must show both: (1) that his counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance under
prevailing professional norms, and (2) that he was prejudiced by his counsel’s ineffective
performance. See Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984); Porter v.
State, 368 S.C. 378, 383, 629 S.E.2d 353, 356 (2006). When there has been a guilty plea, the
applicant must prove that counsel’s representation was below the standard of reasonableness and
that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, there is a reasonable probability that he would not

have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 58-59,

106 S. Ct. 366, 370 (1985); Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001).
The Applicant stated he was indicted for second-degree burglary (non-violent) in 2011,
but that the charge was first-degree burglary when he went to court. The Applicant stated that he

did not realize the charge in which he plead guilty plea to was different than the charge he was

. indicted for until after the fact. He further alleges that counsel failed to explain why the charge

he was pleading guilty to was different from the charge he was originally indicted for. The
Applicant stated he had approximately one month to consider a fifteen-year plea offer and that he
decided to accept it on the day of the plea hearing. The Applicant stated plea counsel told him
the case was set for trial and that the fifteen-year offer was still availabie. The Applicant stated
plea counsel did not promise he would receive fifteen years, but that the State would make this

recommendation. The Applicant stated he would have gone to trial if he had not thought a

p7
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fifteen-year sentence was “a done deal.”

Plea counsel testified he was appointed in this case and not the Applicant’s first attorney.
Plea counsel testified the Applicant wanted to plead guilty and that several plea offers were
extended to the Applicant both prior to and during his representation. Plea counsel testified the
Applicant fejectéd these offers. Plea counsel testified the Assistant Solicitor made a plea offer
on June 18, 2012 to pol pros several charges and recommend a fifteen-year sentence. Plea
counsel testified the Applicant was informed of this offer. Plea counsel testified the assistant
solicitor sent a letter on November 30, 2012 indicating he was informed the Applicant did not
want this offer so the case would likely be put on the January 2013 trial docket. Plea counsel
testified he did not tell the Applicant on the day of the plea hearing that he was sure he would
receive a fifteen year sentence. Plea counsel testified he did not recall why the burglary charge
was enhanced to first-degree but that it was likely because of the Applicant’s prior record.

Regarding the Applicant’s claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, this Court finds the

Applicant has failed to meet his burden of proof. This Court finds the Applicant’s testimony is
| ‘not credible, while also finding plea counsel’s testimony is credible. This Court further finds
plea counsel adequately conferred with the Applicant, conducted a proper investigation, and was

thbroughly competent in his representation.

This Court finds the Applicant failed to meet his burden of proving plea counsel did not
advise him that he was pleading guilty to first-degree burglary. While the Applicant stated he
did not realize he was pleading guilty to first-degree burglary until he received the sentencing
sheets after the plea hearing, this Court does not find this testimony to be credible. At the
beginning of the guilty plea hearing, the clerk stated the Applicant is pleading guilty to three

counts of first-degree burglary and the Applicant did not object. (Plea transcript, p.4). The plea

x
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judge stated the sentence ranges on the three counts of first-degree burglary are between fifteen
years and life imprisonment and the Applicant stated he understood. (Plea transcript, pp.4-5).

This Court finds the Applicant’s assertions are refuted by the plea transcript. See Stalk v. State

375 S.C. 289, 300, 652 S.E.2d 402, 407 (Ct. App. 2007); see also Rayford v. State, 314 S.C. 46,
48-49, 443 S.E.2d 805, 806 (1994) (where transcript of guilty plea proceeding refuted applicant’s
claim that he did not understand the terms of a plea bargain, grant of PCR was inappropriate
notwithstanding applicant’s claim lawyer misadvised him).

This Court finds the Applicant failed to meet his burden of proving plea counsel
misadvised him about the sentence he would receive if he pled guilty. The Applicant stated he
believed he was pleading guilty in exchange for a ﬁftéen-year plea recommendation. This Court

does not find the Applicant’s testimony is credible. The Applicant signed the sentencing sheets

_* prior to the guilty plea hearing and the box for “without negotiations or recommendation” was

checked. In addition, plea. counsel had a letter. from the prosecutor in his file dated November
30, 2012 reflecting the prosecutor’s understanding that the Applicant rejected the fifteen-year
plea offer. As the case was on the trial docket, this Court finds the Applicant knew he was
pleading.guilty without a recommendation. Regardless, this Court finds that, even assuming
arguendo that plea counsel misadvised the Applicant about the recommendation, any error was
cured by the plea colloquy. See Holden v. State, 393 S.C. 565, 575, 713 S.E.2d 611, 616 (2011); |
Burmett v. State, 352 S.C. 589, 593-94, 576 S.E.2d 144, 246 (2003). Plea counsel noted this was
a “straight up plea” and the Applicant did not object. (Plea transcript, p.10). Nor did the
Applicant object after imposition of the eighteen-year sentence. (Plea transcript, pp.12-13).
Additionally, as the Applicant gave a statement for one burglary charge and was caught in the

residence for another burglary charge, this Court does not find credible the Applicant’s assertion
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that he Qould have pled guilty if he had known he would not receive a fifteen-year sentence.

Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has failed to prove the first prong of the
Strickland test — that plea counsel failed to render reasonably effective assistance under
prevailing professional norms. The Applicant failed to present specific and compelling evidence
that plea counsel committed either errors or omissionsvin his representation of the Applicant.
This Court also finds the Applicant has failed to prove the second prong of Strickland — that he
was prejudiced by plea counsel’s performance.

This Court concludes the Applicant has not met his burden of proving counsel failed to
render reasonably effective assistance. See Frasier v. State, 351 S.C. at 389, 570 S.E.2d at 174.

All Other Allegations

As to any and all allegations that were raised in the application or at the hearing in this
matter and not specifically addressed in this Order, this Court finds the Applicant failed to
present any testimony, argument, or evidence at the hearing regarding such allegations.
Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has abandoned any such allegations.

CONCLUSION

Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes the Applicant has not
established any constitutional violations or deprivations before or during his guilty plea and
sentencing proceedings. Counsel was not deficient in any manner and the Applicant was not
prejudiced by counsel’s representation. Therefore, this PCR application must be denied and
dismissed with prejudice.

This Court advises the Applicant that he must file a notice of intent to appeal within thirty
(30) days from the receipt of this Order if he wants to secure appropriate appellate review. His

attention is also directed to Rules 203, 206, and 243 of the South Carolina Appellate Court Rules

yZ ¥4
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for the appropriate procedures to follow after notice of intent to appeal has been timely filed.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the application for post-conviction relief be denied and
dismissed with prejudice; and

2. That the Applicant be remanded to the custody of the Respondent.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this 4_/_ day of_gFertls 2014,

Presiding Judge
Thirteenth Judicial Circuit

/
L 2 /L LS, South Carolina.
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WITNESSES
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
: , ) . BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) .
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on NO 4 2 0 20’2 _the Grand Jurors of Greeaville

County present upon their oath:

That KEVIN LEE KEITH did in Greenville County, on or about the 17th day of September 2011, willfully and

unlawfully enter the residence of Gamal Ibrahim located at, Greenville, South Carolina

without consent and with the intent to commit a crime thercin, and the burglary was accompanied by

circumstances of aggravation, to wit: the defendant has two or more prior convictions of Burglary. This is in

violation of §16-11-0311 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

G

/ / SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES
J T Martin -}
Greenville County Sheriffs Office %
2/13/2012
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
M992721
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Foreperson of Grand Jury
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Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:
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The State of South Carolina
J County of Greenville
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THE STATE
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KEVIN LEE KEITH

|

Indictment for
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FINANCIAL TRANSACTION CARD THEFT

VIOLATION § 16-14-0020

(=]
<<

~)

—uw_n. IR
[ [V u.lr..\
bt 21 200

Cterk ot Count
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STATE OF SOUTHCAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
FINANCIAL TRANSACTION CARD THEFT

N st

COUNTY OF GREENVILLE

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upoﬁ their oath: NOV 2 0 20‘2 .
That KEVIN LEE KEITH did in Greenville Couﬁty, between the 2nd day of December, 2011, and the 31st day of
December, 2011, willful!y and maliciously take, obtain, withhold or otherwise receive a W@fomﬂ‘National
Bank ATM Mastercard, with the account number ending in- belonging to JO ANNA STRONG, with intent

to use, sell or otherwise transfer the card. This is in violation of §16-14-0020 of the South Carolina Code of Laws

(1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES

R Morgan : /VV

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

171972012

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1509475

>n§4 _H@z OF mwb)w’.m H..ﬁ<

Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

{’
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The State of South Carolina
J County of Greenville

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

November TERM 2012

THE STATE

vs.

KEVIN LEE KEITH

,\ Indictment for
0079

BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE

VIOLATION § 16-11-0311

P L ThE S

fioo Sy e

a2 2 22

[T

Clerk of n....::.
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STATE OF SOUTHCAROLINA ) A INDICTMENT FOR

) BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE )

At & Court of General Sessions, convened on the Grand Jurors of Greenville

County present upon their oath: NOV 20 2012
That KEVIN LEE KEITH did in Greenville County, between the lOth'd'ay of December 2011, and the 11th day of
December 2011, willfully and unlawfully enter the dwelling of THOMAS HUGHES located at [N
- Greenville, South Carolina, without consent and with the intent to commit a crime therein, and the burglary
was accompanied by circumstances of aggravation, to wit: The ehtering and/or remaining did occur duriné

nightime hours and/or the defendant has two or more prior convictions for burglary. This is in violation of §16-

11-0311 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the,statute in §pch case made and provided.
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WITNESSES

T Pelt /%/

Greenville County Sheriffs Office

1/20/2012

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
1374096

>¥z OF GRAND JURY

G\wu.rh

Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Peltit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2012-GS-23- _ 00

LMM

., The State of South Carolina

J

County of Greenville
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THE STATE

VS.

KEVIN LEE KEITH

Indictment for

0079
BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE

VIOLATION § 16-11-0311
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- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IND.IC_TMENT FOR
) BURGLARY FIRST DEGREE
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) |
: s A
At a Court of General Sessions, convenedon NOV 2 0 Zbiz the Grand Jurors of Greenville
. g .

County present upon their oath:

That KEVIN LEE KEITH did in Greenville County, on onl about tﬁe 17th day of January 2012, willfully And
unlawfully enter the dwelling of EDDIE GALLOWAY, located at Greenville, South
Carolina, without consent and with the intent to commit a crime therein, and the burglary was accompanied by
circumstances of aggravation, to wit: The defendant has two or more prior convictions for burglary. This is in

violation of §16-11-0311 of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as gmended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOLICITOR
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WITNESSES

Alvin King A

Greenville County Sheriffs Office 74.

2/8/2012

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
M992714

ACTION OF GRAND JURY
N ) N

7GR EVAN AT T
Foreperson of Grand Jury

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:
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The State of South Carolina
\ County of Greenville
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November TERM 2012

THE STATE
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR
' STRONG ARM ROBBERY
COUNTY OF GREENVILLE ) B :
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on NOV 2.' 0 012 the Grand Jurors of Greenville

)

County present upon their oath: '
That IKEVIN LEE KEITH did in Greenville County, on or about the 17th da)';' of January 2012, feloniously take
from the person or presence of JOHN HERNDON, by means of force, threats or intimidation, goods or monies
being described as follows: a wallet and/or money with the intent to permanently deprive the owner thereof. This

is in violation of § 16-11-0325 the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided.

SOUCITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2011GS2309368
Kevin Lee Keith ) A/W#E 1993824

AKA: )  Date of Offense: _9/17/2011
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: 4] ) . S.C.Code § : 16-11-0312
DOB: NN SS* NN - )  CDRCode# _ 0080
Address: )
City,State,Zip: ~ Woodruff, SC 29388 . ;
DL Sibe. ; SENTENCE SHEET ‘
*CDL Yes{] No[J CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmar Yes{T] No(j
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTED OF or §‘¢PLEADS
TO: Burglary, First Degree
in violationof § 16-11-0311 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0079

NON-VIOLENT X VIOLENT SERIOUS [XIMOST SERIOUS Mandatory GPS(CSC {1817-25-45
U & Iy §

w/minor st or Lewd Act)
The charge is:  [X] As Indicted, [T} Lesser Included Offense, (" Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendart’s initials)
The plea is: ithout Negotiations or Recommendation, 1 Negotiated Sentenc T} Rgeo ion by the State.
ATTEST: ) : Sy
GAISS (Ko’ J0.0F W ©d- 78
SC Bar# Deféndant o~~~ Auorfe for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, {] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of / g days/months/ye (7 underthe Youthful Offender Act not toexceed __—— years
ard/or to pay a fine of § — ; provided that upon the service of - days/months/years and/or payment

RS

of S __ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.

‘[J CONCURRENT or ] CONSECUTIVE 1o sentence on:

g The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code & 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
Yy the State Department of Corrections. -‘ .

(J The Defendant is to be placed on the Central egistry of Chi

‘Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawfu! for a persoir€onvicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 {(Criminat
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
DRESTITUT]ON: D Deferred D Def. Waives Hearing DOrdcred PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: s days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED D
(] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 0
*Fine: 5 Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 8 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100  s\UJ W pmts. of § beginning
14-1-211(AX2) (DU! Surcharge) $100 $ . .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessmen) $12 3 ) —____ __ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 S Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public DefProb) $500 TS /D) / L .
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ })\C)
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 S
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $30 hy
§ 56-5-2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea S {J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $5 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County  (if paid in installments $ during probation.
TOTAL V 5

T

Court Reporter: Sentence Date: \-1-204 »

) . Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Dep%‘ilerk (% k.\b Q) U\)\(/Q{vaj S Judge Code: Q \\0 PN
%M\mo&(\

SCCA/217 (0312011)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville 3
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2012GS2302029
' Kevin Lee Keith ) A/WHEM992721
AKA: : , ) Date of Offense: _12/2/2011
Race: WHITE Sex: M . Age: 41 ) S.C.Code § . 16-14-0020, 0100(
DOB: SN  SS* I )  CDRCode#: _ 0348
Address: )
City,State,Zip: - Woodruff, SC 29388-8724 )
D — SiDE 4 SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[ ] No[] CMV Yes[] No[ ] Hazmat Yes[] No[ ]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (J CONVICTEDOF or . [®PLEADS
TO: Financial Transaction Card Theft :
in violation of § 16-14-0020, 0100( of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0348
X] NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [7]SERIOUS (JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS{CSC {1517-25-45
. w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, [T} Lesser Included Offense, []Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand-Jury. (defendant's iritials)

The plea is: Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, ] Recommendgtion by the State.

ATTEST: . . - )
gASS KL Lo % (2 7%
Movyér, M. SC Bar# Deféndant - Atorney efendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the /a\State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 2 days/month [} under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed_— years

andor to pay a fine of § ___— ; provided that upon the service of — days/months/years and/or payment
- s

of§ _— ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference. : :
I ! CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

{ X yhe Defendant is to be given credit for time served pprsuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

y the State Department of Corrections. .51»5%

] The Defendant is to be placed on the al Registry of Chi a

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship.transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

use and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
"[_/RESTITUTION: [[] Deferred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing [Jordered  pTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 7
L] Set by SCDPPPS ‘ Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— : May serve W/E begining

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 7
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing M
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5.%) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211{A)(1) (Corws. Su;char%e) ilgg g N0 . W) - pmts. of § beginning
§ 14-1-211(AX2) (DUI Surcharge 81 . .
g 56-5.2095 ((DUl Assesémcm)g $12 5 $ ___ - paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 7§ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 " § '
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ 5 G
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $
§ 50-21-114(BU!I Breath Test Fee) $50 3
8 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § O Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $s $5 0] § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County  (if paid in installments) 3 during probation.

$

TOTAL \JO
Presiding Judge M —

Clerk of Court/ Deﬂ%m P\ AR d((,u\o e Judge Code: ) \\y D~
BN

Court Reporter: \ Sentence Date: \ -7~ 20 VA
SCCA/217 (03/2011) d
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

COUNTY OF Greenville
STATE VS.
Kevin Lee Keith

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2012GS2302034

] AWE 1509475
ARA: Date of Offense: _ 12/10/2011

)
)
)
)
)
)
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: 41 ) S.C.Code 3§ : 16-11-0311
)
)

DOB: NN SS* NN CDR Code # __0079
Address: NN

DLZ SID#:
*CDL Yes{ ] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes{T] No[]

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (] CONVICTED OF or [RPLEADS
TO: Burglary, first degree

in violationof § 16-11-0311 ____ofthe S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0079
{J NON-VIOLENT X] VIOLENT [T]JSERIOUS [XIMOST SERIOUS {_iMandatory GPS(CSC [J817-25-45
‘ w/minor Ist or Lewd Act)
The charge is: X} As Indicted, [JLesser Included Offense, {"JDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea is: Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [} Negotiated Sentenc [1 Recommendation by the State.

SENTENCE SHEET

ATTEST: feiy Kol oot (o>~
SC Bar? Defendant - Attornéy¥for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the

for a determinate term of ' days/month§/ye; r {1 under the Youthful Oﬁnder Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of § _—— ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

te Department of Corrections, [ County Detention Center,
P

of§ — ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
(] CONCURRENT or {J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:

) e Defendant is to be given credit fos time served uant to'S.C. Code
y the State Department of Corrections. %é% :
[7] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central egistry of e and Neglect pursuant 10 S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for.a person-€onvicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

~

§ 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
{JRESTITUTION: D Deferred D Def. Waives Hearing DOrdercd PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[ Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling d
*Fine: S Random Drug/Alcohol testing O :
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 g N).A ) pmts. of beginning
14-1-211(A)}2) (DUI Surcharge $100 N . . .
g s 6-5-29;5 )((D { I(I Asscssmem)g ) 12 g $ _____ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25  °§ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
3 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) §25 S X .00
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 [
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $30 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $< 3D § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% 10 County (ifpaid in installments) $ during probation.
TOTAL $
q : Presiding Judge
Clerk of Court/ Dep k &(},\A\ '\\23\})\()1,\/«/\44\ L Judge Cfde: & /
Court Reporter: N N\ Sentence Date: L=

0
SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2012GS2302038
Kevin Lee Keith ) AWE 1374096
AKA: ) Date of Offense: _1/17/2012
Race: WHITE Sex: M Age: 41 ) S.C.Code § : 16-11-0311
DOB: R SS*YEER )  CDRCode#: _ 0079
Address: )
City,State,Zip: ~ Greenville, SC 29611 ) .
: SENTENCE SHEET
DL* _ MR SID# )
*CDL Yes{] No[] CMV Yes[] No{] HazmatYes{ ] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J] CONVICTED OF or [XPLEADS
TO: Burglary, first degree
in violationof § 16-11-0311 _of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0079
(] NON-VIOLENT [XI VIOLENT [JSERIOUS XIMOST SERIOUS ["Mandatory GPS(CSC [1817-23-45
w/minor Ist or Lewd Act)
The charge is:  X] As Indicted, [ JLesser Included Oﬁer}se, { ] Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. {defendant's initials)
The plea is: i egotiations or Recomnmendation, [} Negotiated Sentence O cO ion by the State.
ATTEST: — Y Ko JCaitt " 0358
! — SC Bar# Defendant AttorkdsrTor Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the ] State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,

for a determinate term of / g days/mom ] underthe Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of ——— ; provided that upon the service of — days/months/years and/or payment

of§ __— ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
>%}EZONCURRENT or {J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on;

"he Defendant is to be given credit for i rved p
by the State Department of Corrections. %

e
[T} The Defendant is to be placed on the Cefifral Regfstry of Chy

. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

use and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person Tonvicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[ORESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [ | Def. Waives Hearing [Jordered pTUP
Total:  § plus 20% fee: b . days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[} Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 S\0D.m : pmts.of § _. beginning
§14-1-21 1(AX2) (DUI Surcharge) - $100 " § s : : .
§ 56.5-2995 (DUI Asscssment) 512 T _____ paid to Public Defender Fun_d
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % Other: -
Proviso 47.9 {(Public Def/Prob) £500 g
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ S 3V
3 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3 *
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) 850 3
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § {1 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surcharge) 85 $S9- 4D § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County (if paid in installments) 3 during probation.
TOTAL $
. . Presiding Judge,
Clerk of Court/ Dcpu_t\}'Clerk O\Ad O) \” ,d\kq\/\u,\/\b\ Judge Code: NeN
Court Reporter: \ FAAY Sentence Date: A\ - ) -20\™>

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF Greenville ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2012GS2302040
Kevin Lee Keith ) A/WE_M992714
AKA: )  Dateof Offense: _1/17/2012
Race: WHITE Sex: M [ n ) S.C.Code § :_ 16-11-0325
DOB: SN NN )  CDRCode#: _ 0137
Address: | SR )
City,State.Zip: ~ GREENVILLE, SC : :
DLé: bz g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes| | No|_j CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[ ] No[J
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was (] CONVICTED OF or X PLEADS
TO: Common law robbery
in violationof § 16-11-0325 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0137
[Xi NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS {JMOST SERIOUS { JMandatory GPS(CSC [(J§17-25-45

w/minor Ist or Lewd Act)
The charge is:  [X] As Indicted, [JLesser included Offense, {TjDefendant Waives Presentment to Grand Ji ury. (defendant's initials)

The plea is: Without Negotiations or Recommendation, ] Negotiated Sente (0 Re tion by the State.
/‘//SQ X/(,u,,/(;f,\ /09‘@
A SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the < \State Department of Corrections, [ ] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of days/monthg/y r ] underthe Youthful Offender Act not 10 exceed years
and/or 1o pay a fine of $ it ; provided that upon the service of days/monthsixeass and/or payment

of $ — ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Deparmment of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.

[], CONCURRENT or (] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
¥ e Defendamt is to be given credit fogge_r\'ed rsuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

vy the State Department of Corrections.

(] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of d\Ange and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code 317-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[ JRESTITUTION: [} Deferred [} Def. Waives Hearing [Jordered  PTUP
Total: § plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED D
[J Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling il
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcoho! testing ]
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 AN pmts. of S beginning
14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 S . .
g 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 512 T OS;h — paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 36-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 325 g ’
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $.254))
8 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $ v
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3
3 56-5-2942(J) (Vchicle Assessment) $40/ea  § {J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 S § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%10 County (if paid in installments) 5 during probation.
TOTAL - $.
| _ Presiding Judge /% 9 -
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk QCLM_X V}\Q\M; o Judge cfde: & yavy( S —
Court Reporter: \ dn Sentence Date: ) \- 0201

SCCAR217 (03/2011) )




